
1

Cuyahoga Falls City Council
Minutes of the Public Affairs Committee Meeting

June 6, 2011

Members: Mark Ihasz, Chair
Kathy Hummel
Jeff Iula

Mrs. Hummel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Mr. Ihasz was absent

The minutes from the May 16, 2011 Committee meeting were approved as submitted

Legislation Discussed:
Temp. Ord. B-54

Discussion

Temp. Ord. B-54
An ordinance amending Section 505.18 of Part 5 of the Codified Ordinances, relating to feeding of birds,
and declaring an emergency.

Mr. James stated that the past three weeks have been a rough ride. After close deliberation, he has come
to the conclusion that the City already has ordinances on the books to address this matter. Some of the
language was a little obscure so he felt that may be why they were overlooked. He took no issue as to
why he brought this ordinance forward and would do it again if it meant helping his constituents. That is
one thing a Council person has to do. He has not initiated much over the years, but he has done a lot
behind the scenes. He must take every call and concern of his constituents seriously. He’s taken a few
calls over the years complaining about bird feeders, so this was the catalyst of why he sponsored the
legislation. He stated this matter falls under a nuisance ordinance and another one that deals with
garbage. So, he will be withdrawing B-54 and asking the Administration that when there are similar
issues, that the housing inspectors use their due diligence. With these existing ordinances, maybe these
matters can be enforced better. He accepted the blame for not digging deep enough to make sure
something didn’t already exist. He did not mean to put the City on the map internationally. This matter
has been discussed in Australia, India and England. But he would do it again if there was something his
constituents felt was a problem that was not already addressed on the books. There has been a lot of
information and knowledge shared on the proper handling of bird feeders, bird seed, and rodents. He
pointed out that just because it does not happen to you, it doesn’t mean it’s not happening to other people.
He thanked everyone for their indulgence. Mrs. Hummel did not believe Council needed to take any
further action on this ordinance. Since it is withdrawn, it will simply go away. She stated that residents
who had come to discuss their concerns on this ordinance could still speak if they wished to. Mrs. Truby
stated that the Housing Division is aware of each and every ordinance as they pertain to the Code, and
none of the ordinances were overlooked in this case.

Mila Theiss, 2607 Woodward, thanked Mr. James. They had been calling the City inspector who had told
her there was no ordinance on this. Everyone said there was nothing they could do. She spoke to the
Garden Club and asked their opinion and whether they had any ideas. The president is a former City
health inspector who was not able to be present tonight. She had stated there are ordinances because
feeding improperly will cause a serious rodent problem, especially by rivers and near Waterworks. Mrs.
Theiss’ neighbor has not stopped throwing seed on the ground. She invited everyone to come and sit on
her deck or look out her bay window. She also has pictures. The neighbors behind her are having trouble



2

with rodents as well. In the summer, birds do not need to be fed everyday like they need to be fed during
the winter. There is enough food out there for them to eat. She stated she will have the president of the
Garden Club come to Council next week to speak about this.

Sherry Nank, 2602 Sylvan, asked how the head of the housing department could not know of the
ordinances when the Theisses went to him. Mrs. Truby stated she had already responded to that. She was
not there that day so she does not know what was said. Mr. Nettle is on vacation and was not able to be
present tonight. Mrs. Hummel suggested that Mrs. Nank call and discuss the matter with Mr. Nettle when
he gets back. Council does not plan to discuss this matter again. Mrs. Nank felt it was an embarrassment
to the City when citizens go to them and are told there is nothing on the books when, in fact, there is. She
asked if the department had cutbacks. Mrs. Truby stated she was trying to avoid it but felt she needed to
read her response to Council dated May 23, 2011 (copy attached). Mrs. Nank asked if the housing
inspectors were allowed to stop by the house just to see how things were going. Mrs. Truby stated they
need to get a call. Mrs. Nank asked if the department lost inspectors to the County. Mrs. Truby stated
those were in the building department. She reiterated that there are ordinances on the books to address
this situation, and her department responded on the same day or the next day.

George Theiss, 2607 Woodward, asked how Mr. Nettles can do his job if he cannot go onto someone’s
property. Mrs. Truby stated that often times the issue can be seen from the neighbor’s property. Mr.
Theiss stated that Mr. Nettles indicated he could not go onto someone’s property. The last time Mr.
Nettles was there, he was looking at flowers and chimneys, and Mr. Theiss’ cat was dropping rodents at
their feet. People are having things chewed and others are putting out traps. He has old cars in his garage
and is worried the rodents will damage them. He felt that Mr. Nettles turned his head when he was there.
The cat dropped three rodents at their feet. Mrs. Truby stated that Ms. Syx took photos and indicated that
the cat brought a dead chipmunk. Mr. Theiss stated there were three. The foot supply is there and it is
not going away. Someone needs to step in and do something. He needs help. He worked hard for
everything he has.

Mr. James stated in all fairness to Mr. Nettles, he has always responded immediately when Mr. James
would call. He does not know what was said and can only go by what the Theisses have told him. He felt
Mr. Nettles has always been on the up-and-up and does his job well. Perhaps sometimes he may not have
been aware of an ordinance. Mr. James stated he was told that the City had something on the books to
enforce this. He is not debasing anything the Theisses said, but he has found that the housing inspectors
have always done a good job. He did not want anyone thinking that Mr. Nettles does not do his job.

Mrs. Pyke asked if there had been any requests to bait the sewers for rats. Mrs. Carr stated they bait
sewers all the time but they are hearing there are mice in this situation and not rats. Mrs. Pyke told the
Theisses that the City could bait the sewers but warned it would also kill the cat. Mr. Theiss stated they
only had one rat. The rest are chipmunks and squirrels. Mr. James stated that in the other three instances
before this one, all three were rats. Two locations were off Oak Park and one was on Sylvan. The elderly
lady there had her cat bring the river rat right to her doorstep. Mrs. Carr stated again that they can bait the
sewers but it will not correct the problem. Mr. James did not feel they were having a huge issue with rats.

Donna Klett, 2593 Woodward, asked about an inspector being permitted on a property he is inspecting.
From what she recalled, the ordinance permitted him to go onto property as required to inspect the
nuisance. Mr. Janis stated that all of the City’s ordinances follow along with the constitution which
requires a search warrant before searching a property to find a violation.

Mrs. Hummel indicated that one of the inspectors had been banned from a property but the others were
still permitted to inspect it. She stated that this ordinance has been withdrawn and there have been no
other issues so there will be no further discussion.



3

With regard to the ordinance on outdoor composting, Mr. James and Mr. Janis are still working on this
and looking at language. Mr. James is committed to withdrawing the language requiring residents to
purchase some kind of container to do their composting. He will let the press know when it will be
discussed.

Meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.
























